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STATE OF TENNESSEE 
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS # 34513-22721 
AMENDMENT #3 
CHILD ENFORCEMENT SERVICES - 11TH JUDICIAL 
DISTRICT 

DATE: October 15, 2020 
 
RFP # 34513-22721 IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. This RFP Schedule of Events updates and confirms scheduled RFP dates.  Any event, time, or 

date containing revised or new text is highlighted. 
 

EVENT 
 

TIME  

(central time 
zone) 

DATE 

 

1. RFP Issued  September 22, 2020 

2. Disability Accommodation Request Deadline 2:00 p.m. September 25, 2020 

3. Notice of Intent to Respond Deadline 2:00 p.m. September 30, 2020   

4. Written “Questions & Comments” Deadline 2:00 p.m. October 7, 2020   

5. State Response to Written “Questions & 
Comments” 

 October 15, 2020 

6. Response Deadline  2:00 p.m. October 23, 2020 

7. State Schedules Respondent Oral 
Presentation(s) 

 October 26, 2020 

8. Respondent Oral Presentation(s)  October 29, 2020 

9. State Completion of Technical Response 
Evaluations  

 November 12, 2020    

10. State Opening & Scoring of Cost Proposals  2:00 p.m. November 13, 2020    

11. Negotiations  
November 16 through 
November 17, 2020   

12. State Notice of Intent to Award Released and 
RFP Files Opened for Public Inspection 

2:00 p.m. November 20, 2020 

13. End of Open File Period  December 3, 2020 

14. State sends contract to Contractor for 
signature  

 December 4, 2020 

15. Contractor Signature Deadline 2:00 p.m. December 9, 2020   
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2. State responses to questions and comments in the table below amend and clarify this RFP. 
 

Any restatement of RFP text in the Question/Comment column shall NOT be construed as a change 
in the actual wording of the RFP document. 
 

RFP 
SECTION 

PAGE 

# 
QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 

6.2 
Section C 
– C.2 

25 As described, this section 
requires a narrative that “… 
illustrates how the Respondent 
will complete, the scope of 
services, accomplish required 
objectives, and meet the State’s 
project schedule.” In many ways, 
it appears that this section 
should represent the core of a 
Proposer’s technical proposal, 
yet there is only a maximum of 
one point awarded for the 
response. Given that only one 
point is available, could the 
State clarify what is desired in 
this section? Alternatively, could 
the State re-allocate points to 
give this section more weight? 

 The points have been reallocated.  See 
section 3 of this Amendment.  

6.6 –  

Pro 
Forma 

A.51.a.1 

14 In order to deploy staff efficiently 
given the potential for 
unexpected peak volumes, 
would the State consider 
reducing the requirement to 
answer 100 percent of the calls 
within two minutes to 90 percent 
or less? An affirmative answer to 
this question would not affect the 
standard for average speed of 
answer. 

 The State is not entertaining language 
changes or additions at the current time.   

     

6.6 – Pro 
Forma A.6 

4 Please resolve the conflict in the 
minimum required staffing level. 
On the one hand, this section 
requires the contractor “…to 
maintain a staffing level … of 42 
FTEs….” On the other hand, it 
states that “…the Contractor 
shall ensure that the number of 
the Contractor’s does FTEs 
does not fall below 36 full-time 
employees over any three-
month period during the 
Contract Term.” A reasonable 
interpretation of this provision is 
that 36 FTEs is the minimum 
required because it has the most 

 Respondents are expected to bid based on 
the requirement of 42 FTEs. 
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RFP 
SECTION 

PAGE 

# 
QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 

specific language associated 
with it (staffing cannot fall below 
36 FTEs over any three-month 
period). However, since staffing 
costs account for a large 
proportion of this contract, the 
discrepancy between 36 and 42 
FTEs can drive major 
differences in bids based on 
differences of interpretation of 
this provision. Specifically, a bid 
based on 42 FTEs will have 
staffing costs 17 percent higher 
than a bid based on 36 FTEs, 
which could seriously 
disadvantage any Contractor 
bidding to the higher level of 42 
FTEs. Would the State consider 
amending the requirement to 
change the sentence referencing 
36 FTEs to the following: “The 
Contractor shall ensure that the 
number of the Contractor’s FTEs 
does not fall below 42 full-time 
employees during any three 
month period during the contract 
term.” Forty-two FTEs is 
approximately a 450:1 staffing 
ratio, which aligns with State 
staffing targets in recent years 
for other contracts of this type. 

6.6 – Pro 
Forma A.6 

4 - 5 We are concerned about the 
provision that: “The State 
reserves the right, at its sole 
discretion, to adjust the staffing 
levels required in this 
contract….” Since staffing is the 
largest cost component in this 
contract, and since there is no 
restriction on the amount of 
adjustment that might be 
imposed, will the State agree to 
negotiate a good-faith 
modification to the contract 
amount if the Contractor is 
required to staff at a higher level 
than is specified in this RFP? 
Alternatively, or in addition, 
would the State consider limiting 
the amount of reduction that 
could be required, such as five 
percent, to eliminate the 
potential for an open-ended risk 
that this provision creates? 

 The State is not entertaining language 
changes or additions at the current time. 
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RFP 
SECTION 

PAGE 

# 
QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 

6.6 – Pro 
Forma 
Section 
A.66 

18 RFP Section A.66 contains the 
following language: “The 
Contractor shall provide the 
State, no later than January 29, 
2021, a tested version of the 
Disaster Recovery/Business 
Continuity Plan, the original of 
which was provided with the 
technical proposal submitted in 
response to RFP #34513-22721 
resulting in award of this 
contract. The tested version 
must be specific to the 
Contractor’s operation in the 

11th Judicial District and must 
include a report documenting the 
outcome of testing.” [Emphasis 
added.]  Attachment A defines 
failure to submit disaster-
recovery test results by the 
same date to be a liquidated-
damage event. Would DHS 
consider altering the due date 
for these requirements to a date 
approximately 90 days after 
start-up? 

 The due date has been modified to July 30, 
2021.  See section 4 of this Amendment. 

 

 

Liquidated 
Damage 
Event #7 

41 
Liquidated Damage Event 7:  
 
Failure to provide the State, no 
later than January 29, 2021, a 
tested version of the Disaster 
Recovery /Business Continuity 
Plan or to notify the State, by the 
due date as specified, of 
alterations to the documented 
and tested Disaster Recovery / 
Business Continuity Plan.  

(Reference Section A.66.)  

 The due date has been modified to July 30, 
2021.  See section 5 of this Amendment. 

 

General 
Question 

 Is the contractor responsible for 
any fees or costs associated 
with service of process or filing 
of documents with the Clerk of 
Court? If so, please provide the 
contractor’s costs for each 
category during Calendar years 
2019 and 2018, broken out by 
year.   

 No. 

2.1 
Schedule 
of Events 

5 Answers to questions could 
have a significant impact on the 
proposals and there is only one 
week between release of the 
answers and the final 

 No. 
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RFP 
SECTION 

PAGE 

# 
QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 

submission deadline. Would the 
State consider a one-week 
extension of the submission 
deadline to allow more time for 
proposers to formulate their 
solutions once the answers have 
been provided? 

General 
Question 

 When will the next personal 
computer refresh occur for JD 
11? Will it coincide with the 
transition to a new contract or 
occur after the transition? 

 State-owned equipment will be furnished 
with the transition and can be made 
available prior to the effective date to allow 
for network testing since the effective date 
of the Contract falls on a Saturday. 

6.6 

A.2  

Definitions 

1 
With the increased need for 
flexible work schedules, would 
the State be amenable to 
dedicated FTEs that work 32.5 
hours or more per week? 

 No. 

6.6 

A.6 

4 The RFP states that staff 
physically located outside of the 
Contractors office(s) cannot 
count toward the required FTE. 
Please confirm that the staff 
working remotely but dedicated 
to the project will be counted 
towards the 42 FTE 

 Yes, but subject to state approval.  See 
section 6 of this Amendment. 

6.6 

D.20 

26 
The RFP states: “The State and 
Contractor shall comply with 
obligations under the Health 
Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 
(“HIPAA”) … This provision shall 
not apply if information received 
or delivered by the parties under 
this Contract is NOT “protected 
health information” as defined by 
the Privacy Rules, or if the 
Privacy Rules permit the parties 
to receive or deliver the 
information without entering into 
a business associate agreement 
or signing another document.” 
 

Please confirm the State is not 
acting as a Covered Entity and 
that a BAA will not be executed. 

 The Department of Human Services 
provides a broad range of public assistance 
services and is a hybrid entity pursuant to 
45 CFR § 164.105(a).  The Department’s 
Child Support Enforcement Division is not a 
health care component of the Department 
and does not perform covered functions 
under HIPAA. 

General 
Question 

  
When the RFP states a 
deadline for submitting 
information, is that in business 
days or calendar days? (Ex. 
The Contractor shall provide 
the State with justification to 
subcontract legal 

 Calendar days. 
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RFP 
SECTION 

PAGE 

# 
QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 

representation within thirty 
(30) days of contract award.)  

 

5.2.1.6 15 
 
 RFP Section 5.2.1.6 
discusses oral presentations, 
which will apply to all 
Respondents who are 
“apparently responsive and 
responsible.” Will these oral 
presentations take place in 
person in TDHS’s office, or 
will Respondents be invited to 
attend oral presentations 
virtually (via some form of web 
conference, e.g., 
GoToMeeting, Zoom, etc.)?  

 

 Oral presentations shall be conducted 
using a virtual platform.  

6.6 

A.6 

40 
 
 Under Section A.6 of the 
RFP’s Pro Forma Contract, 
the RFP states the Contractor 
shall ensure that the number 
of the Contractor’s FTEs does 
not fall below thirty-six (36) 
full-time employees over any 
three (3) month period during 
the Contract Term. Is this any 
3 consecutive months? 
Please confirm.  

 

 Yes, three consecutive months.  

6.6 

Section B 

57 
 
 In Pro Forma Contract 
Section B, the Term of 
Contract defines “Effective 
Date” as May 1, 2021. This is 
a Saturday. Is this correct? 
Please confirm.  

 

 Yes. 

 

General & 
Pro 
Forma 
Contract, 

Section B 

 

 

 

 

 

57 

 
 Could the State please 
provide clarity for the 
definition of “Effective Date”? 
In Pro Forma Contract Section 
B, the RFP defines “Effective 
Date” as May 1, 2021, the Go 
Live date. However, in other 
RFP sections, the term 
“Effective Date” appears to 
refer to the Contract Award 
date. Can the State please 
clarify whether “Effective 
Date” refers to the first day of 
the new Contract (May 1, 
2021) in all instances or the 
Contract Award Date 
(estimated November 2020)? 
More specifically, please 
clarify whether the following 

 The “Effective Date” is distinct from the 
other dates established in the solicitation, 
such as the Notice of Intent to Award date, 
etc.  The “Effective Date” is defined in 
Section B. of the pro forma contract, RFP 
Section 6.6. 

 



 

RFP # 34513-22721 – Amendment #3 Page 7 of 10 
 

RFP 
SECTION 

PAGE 

# 
QUESTION / COMMENT STATE RESPONSE 

RFP section references to 
“Effective Date” are May 1, 
2021 or another day:  

 RFP Section 4.9.3.1, page 
14;  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section A.3; page 39;  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section A.4.a, page 39;  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section A.5; page 40;  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section A.56, page 51;  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section B, page 57;  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section D.10.d, page 61;  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section D.32, page 65;  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section D.32.d.i.1, page 67; 
and  

 RFP Pro Forma Contract 
Section D.32.d.i.3, page 67.  
 

 

 
 
3. Delete RFP section 6.2 – Section C in its entirety and insert the following in its place (any 

sentence or paragraph containing revised or new text is highlighted): 
 

RFP ATTACHMENT 6.2. — SECTION C 

TECHNICAL RESPONSE & EVALUATION GUIDE 

SECTION C:  TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS, EXPERIENCE & APPROACH.  The Respondent must address all 
items (below) and provide, in sequence, the information and documentation as required (referenced with the 
associated item references).  The Respondent must also detail the response page number for each item in the 
appropriate space below.   

A Proposal Evaluation Team, made up of three or more State employees, will independently evaluate and score 
the response to each item.  Each evaluator will use the following whole number, raw point scale for scoring each 
item: 

0 = little value 1 = poor 2 = fair 
3 = 

satisfactory 
4 = good 5 = excellent 

The Solicitation Coordinator will multiply the Item Score by the associated Evaluation Factor (indicating the relative 
emphasis of the item in the overall evaluation).  The resulting product will be the item’s Raw Weighted Score for 
purposes of calculating the section score as indicated. 
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RESPONDENT LEGAL ENTITY 
NAME: 

 

Response 
Page # 

(Respondent 
completes) 

Item 
Ref. 

Section C— Technical Qualifications,  
Experience & Approach Items 

Item 
Score 

Evaluation 
Factor 

Raw 
Weighted 

Score 

 C.1. Provide a narrative that illustrates the Respondent’s 
understanding of the State’s requirements and 
project schedule. 

 3  

 C.2. Provide a narrative that illustrates how the 
Respondent will complete the scope of services, 
accomplish required objectives, and meet the State’s 
project schedule. 

 4  

 C.3. 
Provide a draft Implementation Plan based on 
Project Management Body of Knowledge (“PMBOK”) 
Guide and Standards published by the Project 
Management Institute. 
  
The Plan must include:  
 
1) The services required for implementation  
2) The schedule for implementation  
3) Roles and responsibilities for implementation  
4) Potential risks and mitigation strategies  

5) A description of the mechanisms for reporting 
status to the State, and coordinating and resolving 
issues related to the implementation. 

 3  

 C.4. Provide a narrative explaining the Respondent’s 
approach to maintaining adequate personnel 
resources to meet the standards established in the 
pro forma contract.  Explain how the Respondent will 
address retention and ensure that its legal staff are 
able to successfully handle a high volume of cases. 

 4  

 C.5. Provide the Respondent’s documented Disaster 
Recovery / Business Continuity Plan. 

 3  

 C.6. 
Provide the Respondent’s Customer Service / 
Complaint Resolution Plan. The Plan must describe 
how the Respondent will manage and respond to 
client inquiries and or complaints. The Plan must 
include a mechanism for:  
 
1) Tracking numbers of inquiries / complaints  
2) Providing resolution descriptions for inquiries / 
complaints as well as time frames for such  

3) Establishing a monitoring process in order to 
assess effectiveness of Customer Service. 

 3  

 C.7. Provide a narrative describing the Respondent’s 
understanding of, and plan for meeting, the 
Performance Standards set forth in Section A.9. of 
the pro forma contract regarding minimum 
performance standards. 

 5  

 C.8. Provide a brief narrative describing the Respondent’s 
plan for the training of its staff assigned to the 
project. The narrative should detail the Respondent’s 

 4  
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RESPONDENT LEGAL ENTITY 
NAME: 

 

Response 
Page # 

(Respondent 
completes) 

Item 
Ref. 

Section C— Technical Qualifications,  
Experience & Approach Items 

Item 
Score 

Evaluation 
Factor 

Raw 
Weighted 

Score 

plan for training during the initial stages of the project 
as well as the strategy for ongoing training over the 
term of the Contract. 

 C.9. Provide a narrative demonstrating the Respondent’s 
understanding of both the Two-Generational and 
Family Centered approach to service delivery.  The 
narrative should also present the Respondent’s plan 
for incorporating both approaches into regular 
operations for the 11th Judicial District 

 4  

 C.10. Provide a narrative describing the Respondent’s 
technical experience with electronic case file 
management and ability to electronically file court 
petitions 

 4  

 C.11. Provide a narrative demonstrating the Respondent’s 
familiarity with federal requirements regarding 
safeguarding federal tax information (“FTI”) under 
IRC § 6103(l)(6)(B) and IRS Publication 1075 and 
explaining how the Respondent will comply with 
those requirements. 

 3  

The Solicitation Coordinator will use this sum and the formula below 
to calculate the section score.  All calculations will use and result in 
numbers rounded to two (2) places to the right of the decimal point. 

Total Raw Weighted Score: 
(sum of Raw Weighted Scores 

above)  
 

 Total Raw Weighted Score X 40 

(maximum possible 
score) 

= SCORE:  
 Maximum Possible Raw Weighted Score 

(i.e., 5 x the sum of item weights above) 

State Use – Evaluator Identification: 

State Use – Solicitation Coordinator Signature, Printed Name & Date: 

 
4. Delete RFP section A.66 in its entirety and insert the following in its place (any sentence or 

paragraph containing revised or new text is highlighted): 
 
A.66. The Contractor shall perform at least one Disaster Recovery Test every three hundred sixty-five 

(365) days. A “Disaster Recovery Test” shall mean the process of verifying the success of the 
restoration procedures that are executed after a critical IT failure or disruption occurs. The 
Disaster Recovery Test shall use actual State Data Sets that mirror production data, and success 
shall be defined as the Contractor verifying that the Contractor can meet the State’s RPO and 
RTO requirements. A “Data Set” is defined as a collection of related sets of information that is 
composed of separate elements but can be manipulated as a unit by a computer. The Contractor 
shall provide written confirmation to the State after each Disaster Recover Test that its Disaster 
Recovery Capabilities. 
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The Contractor shall provide the State, no later than July 30, 2021, a tested version of the 
Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity Plan, the original of which was provided with the technical 
proposal submitted in response to RFP #34513-22721 resulting in award of this contract. The 
tested version must be specific to the Contractor’s operation in the 11th Judicial District and must 
include a report documenting the outcome of testing. In addition, the Contractor shall notify the 
State within forty-five (45) days of any alterations to the Contractor’s documented and tested 
Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity Plan. Such alterations shall be subject to written approval 
by the State. Said plan shall be made available to the State upon request. 

 
5. Delete RFP Attachment A, Liquidated Damage Event 7 in its entirety and insert the following in 

its place (any sentence or paragraph containing revised or new text is highlighted): 
 

Liquidated Damage Event 7: 
 
Failure to provide the State, no later than July 30, 
2021, a tested version of the Disaster Recovery 
/Business Continuity Plan or to notify the State, by 
the due date as specified, of alterations to the 
documented and tested Disaster Recovery 
/Business Continuity Plan. 
 
(Reference Section A.66.) 

 
 
Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.00) per day 
that the contractor fails to provide a tested version 
of the Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity Plan 
as required. 

 
6. Delete RFP section A.6.b in its entirety and insert the following in its place (any sentence or 

paragraph containing revised or new text is highlighted): 
 
b.  staff physically located outside of the Contractor’s office(s) in the 11th Judicial District, unless 

approved in writing by the State; 
 

7. RFP Amendment Effective Date.  The revisions set forth herein shall be effective upon release.  All 
other terms and conditions of this RFP not expressly amended herein shall remain in full force and 
effect.  

 


